ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVW TTEE
February 27, 2012
8:04 a. m
VEVMBERS PRESENT
Co-Chair

Co- Chair
Vice Chair

Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or

Kevin Meyer,
Joe Thonmas,
Bettye Davi s,
Hol l'is French
Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO 6
"An Act relating to providing a prekindergarten programw thin a
school district; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 6
SHORT Tl TLE: PREKI NDERGARTEN SCHOOL PROGRAMS/ PLANS

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVIS, FRENCH

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/19/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 28/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 28/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 14/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 14/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 25/ 11 (S EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
03/ 25/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 25/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 30/ 11 (9 EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
03/ 30/ 11 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 01/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 01/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 01/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 08/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2012



04/ 08/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d
04/ 08/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)
02/ 27/ 12 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

THOVAS OBERMEYER, St af f

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the commttee substitute for SB 6.

LYNN REYNOLDS, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not support SB 6.

LCLI TA BRACHE, representing herself
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 6.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Director

Governnent Rel ations

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 6.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 6 and More
Case Settlenment.

CYNTHI A CURRAN, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 6 and More
Case Settl enent.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:04: 36 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stevens, Davis, Co-Chair Meyer and Co-Chair
Thoneas.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2012



SB  6- PREKI NDERGARTEN SCHOOL PROCGRAMS/ PLANS

8: 05: 03 AM

CO CHAI R THOVAS announced the consideration of SB 6. He said SB
6 was heard last year along with several presentations on the
i mportance of early childhood education and the econom c val ue
of Pre-Kindergarten (Pre-K) prograns. He said many of the ngjor
Al askan organizations involved in early childhood education
provided information; Best Beginnings, Alaska Head Start and
Rural Al aska Community Action Program Inc. He said the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED) presented
an update on their Pilot Pre-K Project. He noted that Senator
French led a group of legislative aides to Allakaket and Mento
to see their Pre-K programs in action. He said there was also a
statewide council on early childhood education that initiated
meetings in My, 2011 and was scheduled to present a final
report in June, 2012.

He asked for a notion to adopt the proposed commttee substitute
(CS) for SB 6.

8:06:21 AM
CO- CHAIR MEYER noved to adopt the CS for SB 6, |abeled 27-
LS0058\ 1, as the working docunent.

CO- CHAI R THOVAS obj ected for the purposes of discussion.

8:06: 43 AM

THOVAS OBERMEYER, Staff to Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, sponsor of SB 6, said the CS would change the age
for a student enrolled in a public Pre-K program from four and
five years of age to four years of age. He said the CS would
provide for the inclusion of Pre-K students in the student count
wi thout providing for an exception for the first year of the
programin order to allow for an estimated count. He said the CS
woul d change the inclusion from part-time student to not nore
than half-tine student. He noted that the change was significant
because it would potentially cut the fiscal note in half.

SENATOR STEVENS asked why the fiscal note was cut in half.

MR. OBERMEYER answered that the original bill counted Pre-K
students as full-tinme rather than hal f-tine.

8:09: 03 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2012



SENATOR DAVI S said Al aska should have a statew de Pre-K program
She noted the proven benefits from other states and enphasized
the i nportance of a Pre-K program

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked if there were any substantial changes in
the bill fromthe CS.

SENATOR DAVIS replied that the changes were noted by M.
Qoer neyer .

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked if the changes noted by M. Ooberneyer were
the only ones.

SENATOR DAVI S answer ed yes.

MR. OBERMEYER said the Pre-K program would be optional to schoo

districts and DEED would be obliged to provide funding if a
district elected to participate. He noted that parental
participation would not be nandatory.

8:11:43 AM
SENATOR FRENCH j oi ned t he neeti ng.

SENATOR DAVIS noted that Pre-K would be simlar to kindergarten
as an optional enrollnent program She said parents had a better
understanding that early education prepared children for first
grade. She said the state could not go wong by initiating a
statewide Pre-K program and noted that nothing would be taken
away from ot her prograns.

SENATOR FRENCH said he would go over sone of the results from
the Al aska Pilot Pre-Kindergarten Project (AP3) Year Two Report.

He said the Peabody Picture Vocabulary Test (PPVT) provided
information on vocabulary and receptive |anguage devel opnent
fromage 2 years 6 nonths, to age 7 years and 4 nonths. He said
PPVT was an English | anguage assessnment that was used with |arge
nunbers of early childhood settings for many years and was known
for its correlation to later school success. He said PPVT
allowed for national conparison and for growmh nodel use in a
pre and post net hodol ogy.

8:15: 06 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said PPTV neasured different aspects of |earning
and boiled down to how nuch children were growing in relation to
normal growmh patterns. He said 78 percent of AP3 students had
shown nore than expected grow h.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2012



He said the Developnental Indicators for the Assessnent of
Learning Third Edition (D AL-3) was a separate set of tests for
screening cognitive developnental delays in children who were
ages 3 years to 6 years 11 nonths. He said DI AL-3 had three
subtests that neasured notor, concept and |anguage skills. He
said fall versus spring results for the total score percentages
increased from 12 percent to 41 percent for the top quartile and
decreased from 47 percent to 24 percent for the bottom quartile.
He said the AP3 program was pushing kids up the |adder and
wor ked on the bottom just as strongly as it worked on the top.

8:19: 29 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said the Early Chil dhood Environnent Rating Scal e
(ECERS) was a nulti-valued test that measured: Space and
Fur ni shi ngs, Per sonal Care Rout i nes, Language- Reasoni ng,
Activities, Interaction, Program Structure, and Parents and
Staff. He said ECERS reached the same conclusions as in the
other test that AP3 students had higher rates of growh. He
noted that the structured set of neasurenents had shown that the
noney bei ng spent on AP3 was goi ng to good use.

He said some of the AP3 kids were not noving up, but generally
nost children were making large strides in their devel opnent. He
noted that some detractors had pointed out that a Pre-K program
put children in school at too early of an age. He said every
pi ece of data shows that Pre-K prograns work

8:22:29 AM

SENATOR FRENCH noted the recent Senate Judiciary Conmittee's
Crime Summit and the presentation given by Annie Pennucci, a
researcher for the Washington State Institute for Public Policy
(WSl PP). He said Ms. Pennucci addressed the long term benefits
froma Pre-K program that included |lowered crine rates, reduced
cost in special education, decreased grade repetition, inproved

hi gh school graduation rates, |owered child abuse rates and
hi gher paying job attainnent. He said the AP3 program should
continue to be pushed out until it was available statew de for
any child.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the long term cost savings froma Pre-K
program coul d be quantifi ed.

SENATOR FRENCH answered that he did not know and woul d get back
to the Senator wth information. He noted that WSl PP had
anal ysis that showed upfront Pre-K investnent nade nore over
tine.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2012



SENATOR STEVENS responded that it was easy to say "this causes
that" wthout proof. He said reviewing the facts and figures
woul d be val uabl e.

8:.25:47 AM
CO- CHAIR MEYER asked if SB 6 would satisfy reconmendations in
t he Moore Case Settlenent.

SENATOR FRENCH answered that the Mbore Case Settlenment addressed
poor performng schools and SB 6 would nove kids up the | adder
He said it may take a few years, but SB 6 would certainly be
within the keeping of the spirit of the Mbiore Case Settl enent.

CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that DEED would be asked to address
the bill's fiscal note and inpact regarding the More Case
Settl enment.

8:27:25 AM

LYNN REYNOLDS, representing hinself, Wasilla, said he was
concerned about funding a Pre-K program and the effects of group-
| earning at an early age.

LCOLI TA BRACHE, representing herself, Honer, said she was an
educat or and an advocate of early chil dhood educati on.

8:35:01 AM

JOHN  ALCANTRA, Director, Gover nnent Rel at i ons, Nat i onal
Education Association-Al aska (NEAA), Anchor age, said NEAA
supported Pre-K prograns.

CO CHAI R THOVAS announced that public testinmony was cl osed.

8. 37.: 03 AM

CYNTHI A CURRAN, Di rector, Teaching and Learning Support,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, Juneau, said the
fiscal note was originally witten for full-time and the anount
woul d change if the CS was adopted. She said DEED would redo the
fiscal note from$83 million to approximately $41 nillion.

She said with regard to the More Case, AS 14.17.905 was anended
by addi ng a new subsection to read:

A school district may not include in the average daily

menbership of a school, students who are four years of
age, if the students are enrolled in a program that

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2012



receives funding, other than funding wunder this
chapter.

She said DEED would like to seek the opinion of the attorney
general due to the possible inpact on the More Case Settlenent.

8:38: 29 AM

LES MORSE, Deputy Conm ssioner, Department of Education and
Early Devel opnent, said SB 6 may or may not affect the Moore
Case Settlenment. He said there were Pre-K conponents in the
Moore Case Settlenent and DEED would ask the attorney genera
for his opinion.

SENATOR DAVIS asked in which way the language in SB 6 would
i npact the Moore Case Settlenent. She said there could not be a
negative inpact from SB 6 and the noney was set aside regardl ess
if the state noved forward with a Pre-K program

MR. MORSE answered that there was funding |anguage that had to
be clarified. He said he did not think there would be a problem
but he would Iike the attorney general to weigh in.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS responded that contacting the attorney genera
woul d be hel pful.

8:41: 01 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said there was a very strong Pre-K conmponent in
the Moore Case Settlenment. He noted there was a rational in the
settlenment to include a Pre-K conponent.

MR. MORSE responded that he would not want to specul ate having
not directly participated in the settlenment discussions.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if $6 nmillion ($2 mllion over three years)
was appropriated for Pre-K via the Miore Case Settlenment and the
annual amount was simlar to the funding for AP3.

MR. MORSE answered that was accurate.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if it was reasonable to say that the new
fiscal note would be sinply derived from cutting the previous
fiscal note in half.

MR. CURRAN answer ed yes.

CO CHAIR THOVAS responded that the fiscal note would be
approximately $41.8 mllion.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2012



CO CHAIR MEYER said the fiscal note did not include additiona
cost to facilities, assumng there was room for additional
students at schools. He asked if DEED had an idea on added
cl assroom space expense if schools were nmaxed out.

MR. MORSE answered that DEED did not know. He said DEED did not
have information on classroom capacity.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS responded that the questions regarding the
fiscal note were fairly critical items that DEED would have to
addr ess.

8:44: 47 AM

At ease from8:44 a.m to 8:46 a. m

8:46: 40 AM

COCHAIR MEYER noted that the next comrttee neeting would
address a bill with a parents-as-teachers conponent, a subject
that could conbine with a Pre-K program He asked the SB 6
sponsors if it would be prudent to hold the bill to address an

updated fiscal note and possi ble parents-as-teachers tie in.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if Senator Meyer neant for the two topics to
cone forward at the sanme tine, not to actually conbine them in
one bill.

CO- CHAlI R MEYER answered correct.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS responded that there was no intention to try to
make one bill out of two.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that was a fair approach and a new fisca
note was comng forward. He noted that he would Iike to get back
to Senator Stevens with a dollar value for Pre-K prograrns.

8:48: 26 AM
CO-CHAIR THOVAS stated that SB 6 would held in commttee.

8:48: 39 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Co- Chai r Thomas adjourned the Senate Education Standing
Commttee nmeeting at 8:48 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2012



